
 

5055 Santa Teresa Blvd., Gilroy, CA 95020             www.gavilan.edu         (408) 848-4800 
Dr. Kathleen A. Rose, Superintendent/President 

 
 

GAVILAN JOINT COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING, BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Tuesday, September 13, 2016 
 

DEDICATION CEREMONY – 4:00 – 5:30 p.m. 
13021 Murphy Avenue, San Martin, CA 

San Martin Airport 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:15 p.m.    OPEN SESSION – 7:00 p.m. 
5055 Santa Teresa Boulevard, Gilroy, CA 95020 

North/South Lounge, Student Center Building 
 

AGENDA 
  
I. CALL TO ORDER 6:15 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 
2. Comments from the Public – This is a time for the public to address the Board 

 3.   Recess to Closed Session      (a maximum of 3 minutes will be allotted to each speaker) 
 

CLOSED SESSION 6:15 p.m. 
Notice is hereby given that a closed session of the Board will be held under the general provisions 
listed as follows:   
 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code  

Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiator:  Dr. Kathleen Rose 
Employee Organization:  Unrepresented Employees 

 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiators:  Dr. Kathleen Rose/Ron Hannon 
Employee Organization:  GCFA 

 
3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiators:  Dr. Kathleen Rose/Eric Ramones 
Employee Organization:  CSEA 

 
4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(b): 
One case 

 
5. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(b): 
One case: #16-CV-2493-NC 

     Board of Trustees: Tom Breen Kent Child Mark Dover Jonathan Brusco 
Laura A. Perry, Esq. Walt Glines Lois Locci, Ed.D. Iris Cueto 

 



II. OPEN SESSION 7:00 p.m. 
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Report of Any Action Taken in Closed Session 
5. Approval of Agenda 
6. Consent Agenda 

(a) Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees minutes, August 9, 2016, Retirement Board minutes, 
August 9, 2016 and Committee of the Whole, Board Budget Workshop notes August 15, 2016 

(b) Personnel Actions 
(c) Warrants and electronic transfers drawn on District Funds 
(d) Payroll Warrants drawn on District Funds 
(e) Purchase Order Ratification 
(f) Ratification of Agreements 
(g) Measure E Bond Quarterly Financial Status Report as of June 30, 2016 
(h) Santa Clara Treasury Investment Portfolio Status as of June 30, 2016 

7. Comments from the Public - This is a time for the public to address the Board  
                                                    (a max. of 3 minutes allotted to each speaker) 
8. Recognitions  

(a) Jr. Rams Essay Writing Award 
(b) Recognition of the Employees of the Month 

9. Officers' Reports  
(a) Vice Presidents 
(b) College President 
(c) Academic Senate 
(d) Professional Support Staff 
(e) Student Representative 
(f) Board Member Comments 
(g) Board President 

10. Board Committee Reports 
11. Information/Staff Reports 

(a) Update on STEM Outdoor Projects 
(b) Gavilan College Community Spirit Awards  
(c) Board of Trustees Self Evaluation 
(d) Community Education Fall 2016 Classes 
(e) Educational Master Plan  
(f) Open Enrollment and Affiliated Health Benefit Information 
(g) Schedule of Information Reports to the Board of Trustees 
(h) Substantive Change Proposal, Change of Location: Coyote Valley Site (Draft) 

   
III. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Old Business 
 * (a) Public Hearing and Approval of the Final Budget FY 2016/17 

 
2. New Business 

(a) Expenditure Plan for FY 2016-2017 Proposition 30 Education Protection Act Funds 
(b) Quarterly Financial Status Report, CCFS 311Q at June 30, 2016 
(c) Retiree Health Benefit Trust Contribution 
(d) Grant Sub-Agreement with Rancho Santiago Community College District for CTE Unlocked 

Funding and Technical Assistance Grant 
(e) Bay Area Shared Regional Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Lab 

Memorandum of Understanding 

2 
 



(f) Child Development Training Consortium Agreement 
(g) CTE Enhancement Fund Grant 
(h) Miscellaneous Measure E Construction Agreements 
(i) Gavilan College Aviation Maintenance Technology Program at San Martin Airport, Change 

Order #3 
(j) Agreements for Demolition of CE500, CJ200, CJ300 and CJ400 

 * (k) Resolution #1014:  A Resolution in Support of Proposition 51, the Kindergarten through 
Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act Of 2016 

(l) Keenan and Associates Agreement for Health Benefit Consultative Services 
(m) Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Schedule Revision 

 
IV. CLOSING ITEMS 

1. The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is October 11, 2016, Gavilan College, Dr. TJ Owens 
Gilroy Early College Academy, Multi-Purpose Building. 

2. Adjournment 
 

*Roll Call Vote 
 

GAVILAN COLLEGE MISSION 
Gavilan College cultivates learning and personal growth in students of all backgrounds and abilities through 

innovative practices in both traditional and emerging learning environments; transfer pathways, career and technical 
education, developmental education, and support services prepare students for success in a dynamic and 

multicultural world. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – Individuals wishing to address the Board on a non-agenda item may do so during the 
Comments from the Public.  However, no action may be taken on an item, which is not on the agenda.  The public is 
welcomed to address the Board on particular agenda items and may do so at the time it is presented.  Guidelines for 
Comments from the Public will be as follows: 
 

A maximum of 3 minutes will be allotted to each speaker with a maximum of 20 minutes to a subject area. 
No disruptive conduct will be permitted at any Gavilan College Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEMS – Individuals wishing to have an item appear on the agenda must submit the request in writing to 
the Superintendent/President two weeks prior to the regularly scheduled meeting.  The Board President and 
Superintendent/President will determine what items will be included in the agendas.  Regular meetings are held the 
second Tuesday of each month. 
 
Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted on by the Board of Trustees as 
one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to Board vote unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
requests that specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda.  It is understood that the 
Administration recommends approval on all consent items.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved by the 
Board of Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the Board meeting 
room or to otherwise participate at this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact Nancy Bailey at 
408-848-4711.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting. 
 
Members of the public may inspect agenda documents distributed to the Board of Trustees at the President’s Office, 
SC130, during regular working hours, or at http://www.gavilan.edu/board/agenda.php 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Please help keep Gavilan College a litter-free campus and preserve its park-like setting.  Thank you.   

3 
 

http://www.gavilan.edu/board/agenda.php
























































































































 
 
   

Substantive Change Proposal 

Change of Location: Coyote Valley Site 
 
 
 
 
 

Gavilan Community College District 
5055 Santa Teresa Blvd 

Gilroy, Ca 95020 
 

 

Prepared by: 
 

Linda Vaughn 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

South Bay Regional PSTC 
 

and 
 

Sherrean Carr 
Dean of Career Technical Education, Gavilan College 

 
Submitted 

September 13, 2016 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Left Blank Intentionally 

  

ii 
 



 
Contents 
A. Overview of Substantive Change ......................................................................... 1 

A.1 Description of Proposed Change ........................................................................................................ 1 

A.2 Relationship to the Gavilan College Mission ...................................................................................... 1 

A.3 Rationale for Proposed Change .......................................................................................................... 2 

B. Planning Process Leading to Request for Change ............................................. 3 

B.1 Relationship to Planning, Evaluation and Stated Mission .................................................................. 3 

B.2 Needs and Resource Assessment ....................................................................................................... 4 

B.3 Anticipated Effect of the Proposed Change on the Institution .......................................................... 5 

B.4 Benefits Resulting from Change ......................................................................................................... 5 

B.5 Preparation and Planning Process for the Change ............................................................................. 6 

C. Institutional Resources, Process for Change and Quality Assurances ............ 6 

C.1 Student Support Services .................................................................................................................... 6 

C.2 Sufficient and Qualified Faculty, Management, and Support Staffing ............................................... 7 

C.3 Professional Development .................................................................................................................. 7 

C.4 Appropriate Equipment and Facilities ................................................................................................. 8 

C.5 Sustainable Fiscal Resources ............................................................................................................... 8 

C.6 Comparative Analysis of Budget, Enrollment and Recourses ............................................................. 8 

C.7 Plan for Monitoring Achievement of Outcomes ................................................................................. 9 

C.8 Evaluation and Assessment of Student Success, Retention and Completion ................................... 10 

D. Evidence of Internal and External Approvals .................................................. 10 

E.  Evidence of Maintenance of Eligibility Requirements ................................... 11 

F. Accreditation Standards ..................................................................................... 18 

Appendices ................................................................................................................ 20 

Appendix A – Consortium & Public Safety Program Enrollment Trends .............................................. 20 

Appendix B – Social/Demographic/Labor Market Snapshot ................................................................. 21 

Appendix D - Board Policy 2100 (Board Elections) .............................................................................. 26 

Appendix E – Board Policy 4030 (Academic Freedom) ........................................................................ 28 

Appendix F – Board Policies (Admissions) ............................................................................................ 30 

Appendix G – South Bay Regional PSTC History ................................................................................. 32 

   Appendix H – South Bay Regional PSTC 2014-15 Audit Report   ...…………………………………..38 
 
 
 

iii 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

iv 
 



 

A. Overview of Substantive Change 
 

A.1 Description of Proposed Change 
 
Gavilan College is requesting a Substantive Change Review to seek approval to relocate their 
Public Safety Career Technical Training and Educational Program known as South Bay Regional 
Public Safety Training Consortium (Consortium) from the San Jose Evergreen Community 
College District property on Yerba Buena Road, San Jose to the new Coyote Valley Site on 
Bailey Road, San Jose. The program would experience no change in course delivery to the 
student population throughout the greater San Francisco Bay Area currently being serviced.  
 
The change of location will provide for additional space and support for the delivery of 
additional Certificate and Degree applicable courses to public safety students. In addition, 
Gavilan College will deliver Science, Technology, Engineering, Math (STEM), and general 
education courses at the site, through face to face, hybrid and fully online formats, to compliment 
the Consortium program, and meet the needs of the northern District student base. Program, 
Degree, Certificate and GE course delivery will be scheduled so as to have the widest impact on 
access to education across the District.  
 

A.2 Relationship to the Gavilan College Mission 
 
The College’s mission statement is as follows: 
 
Gavilan College cultivates learning and personal growth in students of all backgrounds and 
abilities through innovative practices in both traditional and emerging learning environments; 
transfer pathways, career and technical education, developmental education, and support 
services prepare students for success in a dynamic and multicultural world. 
 
The mission is evaluated and revised on a regular basis and was last reviewed and approved by 
the board on January 12, 2016.  

Our Purpose Statement 

Gavilan College offers a wide range of services, including programs of community education, 
study in the liberal arts and sciences, and study in the pre-professional, business, vocational, and 
technical fields. To support student success within the Public Safety Career Technical Education 
Program, we were fundamental in the creation of the South Bay Regional Public Safety Training 
Consortium.  What was originally a partnership between Gavilan and San Jose/Evergreen 
Community College District, the Consortium is now 9 colleges strong, offering a vast array of 
public safety basic and continuing education courses on days, evenings, and weekends. The 
courses are delivered in traditional, modular and compressed formats to meet student needs. All 
offerings are designed to assist students in meeting their educational and life goals.  
 
The Gavilan Joint Community College District is comprised of 2,700 square miles encompassing 
southern Santa Clara and most of San Benito County. 

1 
 



 

 
In the spring of 1997, instructional sites were added in Hollister and Morgan Hill to augment 
offerings on the main campus. With the passage of the Measure E facilities bond in 2004, 
Gavilan College has modernized the existing campus, and can prepare students of the future with 
permanent education centers in Coyote Valley and San Benito County. The next few years will 
see improvements in institutional and classroom technology, expanded online services, 
improvement in technology infrastructure and improvements in safety, accessibility, and 
lighting. Relocating Gavilan’s public safety program and associated general education courses to 
the 28,200 square foot Coyote Valley Site fulfills Phase One of the Coyote Valley project. Based 
upon population projection estimates from the Department of Finance (DOF) using the 2010 
U.S. Census data, Coyote Valley will experience a population growth of approximately 1.6% 
from 2015-2020 and Gavilan projects nearly full site utilization within two years of opening of 
the Coyote Valley Site.  
 
Phase Two of the development will expand site construction to total 554,000 square feet of 
buildings, along with student services and course availability in specialty Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) programs such as Engineering and Career Technical 
Education programs such as Computer Science and Information Systems.  
 
Approximately 10% of Gavilan’s FTES, is in public safety training and education. The Coyote 
Valley Site, and its location, allows Gavilan to expand accessibility and services for their 
students to the Consortium program. An added benefit is that this new site establishes Gavilan 
College as the host for public safety training and education for the entire region, as well as 
meeting the inter-collegiate collaborative and cooperative goals of the Chancellor’s Office Doing 
What Matters for Jobs and the Economy Initiative.  
 
The Consortium program is certified by both the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and 
Training (P.O.S.T.) and the State Fire Marshal as the Regional Training Center for law 
enforcement and fire services training from South San Francisco to King City. The Consortium 
provides basic training in law enforcement, fire services and EMTs to students who will secure 
employment throughout the Greater Bay Area as well as the East Bay and Central Valley. Data 
compiled through the Economic & Workforce Development projects over a 5% increase in entry 
level law enforcement and fire services jobs in California over the next 5 years, and over 14% 
and 20% in corrections and EMT/paramedics, respectfully.  By providing the Consortium 
program with a permanent location at the Coyote Valley Site, Gavilan College will be positioned 
to be the primary source for public safety Certificate and Associate programs as well as basic and 
career advancement training in the San Francisco Bay Area. 

A.3 Rationale for Proposed Change 
 
Since 1994, The Consortium has been located at a jointly-used training facility on the San 
Jose/Evergreen District property in San Jose. However, with changes in enrollment and SJ/EVC 
District needs, the Consortium Program must be relocated. The Coyote Valley Site provides the 
requisite space and location to sustain the current program and offers opportunities for 
expansion.  
 
In partnership with South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium, Gavilan College 

2 
 



 

continues to develop and enhance educational, Degree and Certificate, opportunities in its Career 
Technical Education programs. We recently received approval for an Administration of Justice 
Certificate of Achievement and AS-T, as well as a Fire Technology Certificate of Achievement. 
We are developing additional Fire Technology courses aligned with courses recently receiving 
C-ID approval  through the Chancellor’s Office, to establish a Fire Technology Associate Degree 
to meet the comprehensive educational needs of students and the profession.  
 
With Silicon Valley continuing to provide some of the best opportunities for employment in 
public safety over the coming decade, Gavilan College will need to take advantage of its close 
proximity to this area. The Economic & Workforce Development reports that the Silicon Valley 
region employs over 22,000 public safety personnel with an additional 2800 jobs available 
between 2015 and 2020. Gavilan College’s Administration of Justice program enrolls over 500 
full-time equivalent Gavilan College students or approximately $2.4 million in apportionment 
revenue, annually. (Appendix A)  The Consortium enrolls in an additional 2100 full-time 
equivalency students for the other eight JPA colleges. Failing to identify a suitable permanent 
location for the Consortium would have a tremendous, negative impact on the public safety 
profession in the San Francisco Bay area, as well as throughout California.  The District believes 
moving the Consortium program to the Coyote Valley Site will allow Gavilan College to offer 
better educational opportunities and continue to provide the much needed training and 
educational services the Consortium program has been delivering for over 20 years. The District 
recognizes the Consortium’s importance and contributions, and has prioritized our decisions to 
support the public safety program at the Coyote Valley Site which will lead to degrees, transfer, 
certificate fulfillment, and ultimately career pathways in the District’s service area. 
 
Labor market is an important consideration for all career technical education programs and an 
analysis is part of the Consortium’s program review in 2015. (Appendix B) The College has 
reported extensively on regional labor market factors and trends as well as taking a snapshot of 
employment and economic data in the Educational Master Plan report from 2013.  
 
 
B. Planning Process Leading to Request for Change 
 
Gavilan Community College District maintains an integrated planning process to develop and 
evaluate programs. All planning efforts are derived from the mission and vision of the College. 
The Educational Master Plan continuously referred to in this proposal provides the foundation 
and guiding principles to all other planning efforts, including the Gavilan College Strategic 
Plan1. 

B.1 Relationship to Planning, Evaluation and Stated Mission 
 
The Gavilan Joint Community College District is proposing to develop an approximately 55-acre 
property for a community college campus that could eventually accommodate up to 10,000 
students in the Coyote Valley area of San Jose. The District is comprised of approximately 2,700 

1 Strategic Plan FY 2015/16 - 2019/20: 
http://www.gavilan.edu/strategic_plans/Gavilan_StrategicPlan_2015_2020.pdf 
 

3 
 

                                                           

http://www.gavilan.edu/strategic_plans/Gavilan_StrategicPlan_2015_2020.pdf


 

square miles in southern Santa Clara County and most of San Benito County. Currently, the 
District operates a main campus at Santa Teresa Boulevard and Mesa Road in Gilroy and two 
instructional sites in Hollister and Morgan Hill, distance education classes in many disciplines, 
and instruction at other offsite locations. 
 
In the first phase of the development of the Coyote Valley Site, the primary focus will be to 
provide a gateway center giving students access to general education/transfer courses and a 
District-funded specialized facility for the Administration of Justice and Consortium Academy 
programs offered by Gavilan College. The facility will provide not only education and training 
for law enforcement, fire services, EMT, dispatch and corrections through traditional Certificate 
and Degree course delivery, but also offer pre-employment testing and training, and pre-
employment courses that assist students in preparing for the JLE 100 and JFT 8 Basic Academy 
courses. The Consortium program also provides “perishable skills” update training so students 
can maintain the requisite skills, knowledge and the certifications necessary to secure or maintain 
employment in the public safety professions.  
 
Phase Two of the development of the Coyote Valley Site will be to establish an Educational 
Center and provide comprehensive general education and basic skills classes opportunities and 
specialty Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) programs within the 
Career Technical Education programs such as Computer Science and Information Systems.  
Phase Two also calls for the expansion of the campus through the construction of additional 
lecture halls, laboratories, and athletic fields. 
 
The Coyote Valley Site allows for the opportunity to recapture more than 1,800 existing Gavilan 
Joint Community College District students (headcount) that currently drive past the Coyote 
Valley site or utilize other community college districts located to the north.  The Consortium 
program is driven by the needs of the public safety industry and the needs of its member 
colleges. It was created to provide a higher quality of public safety education and training 
through a cooperative effort between the community colleges and public safety professionals. 
The collaborative nature of the organization, currently nine community colleges strong, creates 
stability and provides the support required to deliver approximately 1.35 million student contact 
hours annually.  
 

B.2 Needs and Resource Assessment 
 
The Consortium program is comprised of 40 full-time and part-time staff, and over 200 part-time 
faculty members. The entire organizational structure and its resources will be relocated to the 
Coyote Valley Site in its entirety. The Consortium Board of Directors meet quarterly and review 
the program’s progress, needs, concerns and future challenges and opportunities. Should specific 
programmatic needs arise, Gavilan College and all Consortium members will pool resources 
and/or funds to support the short and long-term goals of the organization.  
 
The Consortium program underwent a complete program review in fiscal year 2014-15. 
Identifying a permanent location for the program and continued collaboration with industry 
partners were two of the recommendations for the program. The Coyote Valley Site solves one 
of the programmatic concerns. In addition to the Consortium Board of Directors’ quarterly 

4 
 



 

meeting, Consortium personnel engage in quarterly industry Advisory meetings and monthly 
Training Manager meetings in San Mateo, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, and Monterey Counties. 
 
All usable Consortium equipment and property will be moved and employed at the Coyote 
Valley Site.  The continued maintenance and acquisition of resources for the Consortium at the 
Coyote Valley site is supported through a separate funding mechanism established by the 
Consortium Board of Directors, of which President Kathleen Rose is a member. The Consortium 
Administrative offices will utilize furniture and equipment employed at their current location. 
Classrooms will be resourced using a combination of new, gently used and surplus furniture and 
equipment from Gavilan College’s and the Consortium’s stored inventories.  
 
Gavilan College and the Consortium will support administrative and student service offices to 
support Gavilan students engaged in all the programs offered at the Coyote Valley Site.  

B.3 Anticipated Effect of the Proposed Change on the Institution  
 
It is anticipated that this change will increase access to educational opportunities for residents of 
the service area that would otherwise be unavailable. As the Consortium programs expand to 
include Degree applicable course delivery, the College expects a moderate increase in 
Administration of Justice and Fire Technology enrollment and completers, especially among 
service area residents who live a great distance from the main campus. The College also hopes to 
recapture and stop the future loss of students residing in our service area to other colleges who 
are currently offering degrees in these programs.  

B.4 Benefits Resulting from Change 
 
The primary benefit of the proposed change is increased access to education. As the District 
expands learning opportunities that support specific degree programs into the Coyote Valley 
Site, more students will be able to reach their educational goals. It is anticipated that this change 
will also have a positive impact on retention and completion rates, keeping students at Gavilan 
versus losing them to neighboring community colleges with more advanced programs. 
 
The Administration of Justice and Fire Technology professions are successful choices for many 
students, providing pathways to high-wage jobs. The publication “Advancing Student Success in 
California Community Colleges” reports that “The California Community Colleges train 80 
percent of firefighters, law enforcement personnel, and emergency medical technicians.” The 
Consortium is recognized and certified as the Regional Presenter of these programs by the two 
state agencies overseeing the professions: the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and 
Training (POST) and the State Fire Marshal. The relocation of the Consortium Program to the 
Coyote Valley Site strategically positions Gavilan College as the premier provider of associated 
Degree, Certificate and transfer programs within the disciplines. 
 
Placement of the Consortium program at the Coyote Valley Site creates stability for the program 
and ensures students continued access to public safety workforce education and training as well 
as associated certificate and degree programs. By offering general education courses in 
conjunction with the Consortium program courses, current and aspiring public safety employees 
will have access to all courses necessary to achieve their educational and professional goals. 

5 
 



 

 
The public safety profession is evolving with the changes in technology. Gavilan will offer 
STEM and additional CTE courses at the Coyote Valley Site which will compliment and provide 
a diversified education opportunity to Gavilan students. The comingling of the CTE disciplines 
at the Coyote Valley Site will parallel the trend of new and emerging careers and professions in 
the public safety, emergency management, cyber security and technology industries.  
 

B.5 Preparation and Planning Process for the Change 
 
The Gavilan College 2013 Educational Master Plan outlined the District’s need and intention to 
develop the Coyote Valley Site.  From its inception, the Consortium has been an integral part of 
Gavilan College’s Administration of Justice program and was instrumental in the development of 
the Fire Technology and Emergency Medical Technician program. The SJ/EVC District property 
was the original location for the Consortium due to the fact they had a newer facility already 
operational, and their proximity to two of the largest public safety agencies in the county (San 
Jose Police and Santa Clara County Sheriff). With the re-dedication of SJ/EVC resources and 
specifically the property housing the Consortium program, now over 20 years old, Gavilan 
College has the opportunity to take a more hands-on role in the expansion of the Program and 
support Gavilan College students in achieving their educational and professional goals. As one of 
the JPA founding colleges, Gavilan welcomes the opportunity to take on more a more direct 
leadership role in the Consortium structure. Having the Consortium located on the Coyote Valley 
Site, will create a greater nexus between the courses delivered by the Consortium for Gavilan 
College and the certificate and degree programs to which the courses are associated. 
 
The Coyote Valley Site plans were developed and reviewed as outlined in the Board Policies, 
and approved by the Gavilan Board of Trustees. The executive staff at the Consortium was 
consulted to ensure the facilities would meet the needs of all the programs and students utilizing 
them during all phases of the project.  
 
 
C. Institutional Resources, Process for Change and Quality Assurances 

C.1 Student Support Services 
 
The College Orientation is available online and counseling/advising services are available via 
telephone. Registration is fully online and does not require a campus visit. Student guidance is 
available through every step of the enrollment process. All of the information needed to apply, 
matriculate, and enroll is available on the College website2. To help students navigate the 
complexities of financial aid, there are a number of online videos. 
 
In addition, we offer other services to students at satellite locations which are easily accessed 
from our learning management portal or through the individual webs sites themselves including: 

• Tutoring Center.  

2 http://www.gavilan.edu/student.html 
 

6 
 

                                                           

http://www.gavilan.edu/orientation/
http://www.gavilan.edu/admit/
http://www.gavilan.edu/counseling/online_welcome.html
http://www.gavilan.edu/finaid/
http://www.gavilan.edu/finaid/
http://www.gavilan.edu/tutor/
http://www.gavilan.edu/student.html


 

• Writing Center 
•  Library   
• Research help is available through a live chat service, email, and by telephone.  
• Bookstore 
• Assessment 
• Health Services 
• Transportation & Bus Services 

 
Accommodations for students with disabilities are honored at all Gavilan Campuses. All courses 
approved for delivery at the Coyote Valley Site through the Curriculum Committee have a 
completed statement of accommodation.  Appointments can be made at the Disability Resource 
Center (DRC) for test proctoring, use of assistive technology and other services. Each classroom 
is designed to accommodate students with disabilities and special accommodation requests are 
honored as reasonable. The College has limited proctoring services outside of the classroom. 

C.2 Sufficient and Qualified Faculty, Management, and Support Staffing 
 
Faculty who teach Consortium courses are required to meet the same subject area minimum 
qualifications as all Gavilan College faculty. Currently, the Consortium Program is structured 
similarly to the College with a President, Vice Presidents and Program Coordinators, all of 
whom meet or exceed the minimum qualifications for instruction as designated by Title V. This 
staff functions in place of a full-time faculty member specifically for the public safety program.  
The staff also supervise and provide assistance to more than 200 part-time faculty and all 
Consortium students.  They offer one-on-one technical support and courses/workshops. 
Additionally, the Consortium has an Instructional Services Support department comprised of five 
employees, and Fiscal Services staff of six full-time and two part-time employees. The 
Consortium also employs its own IT staff to support the needs of instructional staff and technical 
support. The Consortium maintains a bookstore (physical and online) for the convenience of 
students participating in the program. The Consortium bookstore will be blended with the 
Gavilan bookstore on the Coyote Valley Center to serve faculty and students delivering/attending 
any of the courses onsite. (Appendix C) 

C.3 Professional Development 
 
All faculty, who teach in the Consortium Basic Academy courses, are required to complete the 
associated Instructor Certification courses as identified by the Commission on Peace Officer 
Standards and Training (POST), or the State Fire Marshal prior to providing any instruction to 
students. Additionally, faculty who teach any specialized topics are required to complete the 
requisite certified instructor courses for those topics, as well.  All instructors are required to 
complete regular update training, minimally 8 hours of continued professional development 
every 3 years. 
 
The Consortium hosts professional development training in Administration of Justice and Fire 
Technology throughout the fiscal year. Both POST and the State Fire Marshal provide online and 
classroom-based professional development. Program Coordinators are in regular contact with 
faculty members, and training opportunities and resources are regularly posted on the 
Consortium website. These resources include information on the following: best practices, 

7 
 

http://www.gavilan.edu/writing/
http://www.gavilan.edu/library/
http://www.gavilan.edu/library/researchassistance.html
http://www.gavilan.edu/library/askalibrarian_chat.html
http://www.gavilan.edu/bookstore
http://www.gavilan.edu/admit/assessment/index.php
http://www.gavilan.edu/student/health/index.php
http://www.gavilan.edu/student/drc/index.php
http://www.gavilan.edu/student/drc/index.php


 

instructor handbook, regulatory concerns, pedagogical strategies, instructor preparation, 
technology tools, and more.  

C.4 Appropriate Equipment and Facilities 
 
The Consortium will be relocated with all current utilized furnishings, equipment and resources.  
All classrooms will be equipped with tables and chairs conducive to the learning environment, 
ceiling and wall mounted audio visual equipment, and dedicated and wireless internet 
capabilities. The Consortium will maintain all equipment necessary for manipulative lab 
exercises associated with the public safety courses, as well as first aid/CPR kits and safety 
equipment as required by the state regulatory agencies. The Consortium will maintain a Resource 
Center of text, videos and CDs at the Coyote Valley Site, as well as a Bookstore for faculty and 
student supplies. For faculty and staff, the Consortium will maintain the latest technology to 
demo and check-out, as well as have multimedia staff available to assist with the production of 
video or other content for their classes. The District maintains open computer labs at the main 
campus, including the Library, the Learning Commons, the Computer Center, the Student 
Success Center and various labs and instructional spaces.  

 

C.5 Sustainable Fiscal Resources 
 
The Gavilan Community College District has sufficient resources to support the planned 
projected growth in enrollment for both the Consortium program and the degree applicable 
courses to be offered at the Coyote Valley Site. The foundational concept of the JPA requires 
shared expense and support of the Consortium program. The nine member colleges collaborate 
and cooperate through sharing of resources to provide quality education and training in a cost 
efficient manner for all member colleges. As the host location for the Consortium administrative 
offices, Santa Clara County Academy and associated continuing education courses, the Coyote 
Valley Site will benefit from the FTES Gavilan College has dedicated to the program. Gavilan 
College will continue in their leadership capacity as more than simply a member of the 
Consortium. The Consortium program will become a more integral part of the Gavilan College 
educational plan, expanding certificate, associate and career technical educational programs 
specific to public safety careers. The funding model of the JPA, ensures the sustainability of the 
program during the cyclical flush and lean student enrollment periods for the community 
colleges, without Gavilan College bearing the full financial burden of success.     
 

C.6 Comparative Analysis of Budget, Enrollment and Recourses 
 
The proposed change will not have a significant impact on the institutional budget for the next 
several years. Moreover, having the Consortium Program located on the Gavilan Coyote Valley 
location avails additional potential funding opportunities which would mitigate any additional 
costs associated with the continued support on the site. Historically, Gavilan has dedicated 
approximately 470 FTES to the Consortium program annually since 2008. Economic & 
Workforce Development through the California Community Colleges project an additional 
16,694 new and replacement entry level jobs in law enforcement and 6,612 in Fire Services over 

8 
 



 

the next five years. Gavilan College currently dedicates 550 FTES to the Consortium program to 
meet the anticipated increase in enrollment associated with these positions. Additionally, the 
Economic & Workforce Development project a total of 3815 promotional positions within law 
enforcement and fire services over the next five years. The Consortium program not only 
provides the basic skills training, but also the promotional courses required by the State 
certification agencies in each discipline. 
 
According to the Department of Finance the adult population in Morgan Hill and the adjacent 
area of Coyote Valley is predicted to increase over the next 25 years (see below) 
 

Adult Population of Morgan Hill and Adjacent Communities 
 

 
 
Enrollment trends have indicated that there are students who would benefit from expanded 
services in Coyote Valley, to include offering all courses in select degree and certificates, 
expanded computer lab systems to support tutorial needs, distance education, and information 
competency learning outcomes. Innovation and technology are transforming the manufacturing 
industries, in specialty, high value-added areas. These jobs require specialty technical and Career 
Technical Education and training that will be offered at the Coyote Valley Site during Phase two 
of the project. 

C.7 Plan for Monitoring Achievement of Outcomes 
 
All Consortium courses offered are reviewed and approved by the Curriculum Committee to 
ensure courses meet the same learning outcomes, have the same rigor, and use appropriate 
instructional methodology. Institutional Research collects, analyzes, and disseminates data to 
measure the attainment of student learning outcomes and course success. All of the related 
programs are on a program review cycle. The Consortium Program completed the IEC review 

9 
 



 

process in 2015. Success Data is shared with division Deans for the purpose of improving 
student outcomes. 

C.8 Evaluation and Assessment of Student Success, Retention and Completion 
 
Faculty are encouraged to use multiple measures of assessments in each course and are trained in 
the use of tools that enhance academic integrity such as test banks, timed tests, State 
standardized written and manipulative tests, scenario-based exercise, and skills demonstrations.  
 
Student success and retention rates are monitored for all courses at Gavilan College. The most 
recent analysis over a three year period (Fall 2011 to Spring 2014) show average success rates 
for Gavilan College public safety courses were 98.1% and retention rates were 99.3 %. The 
Research Department shares information with division Deans and the Vice President of 
Instruction regarding success rates. This information is then used at the division level to develop 
appropriate interventions. Regarding completion, the development of new and congruent 
courses, Certificates, Degrees and Programs are four strategies the College is pursing to improve 
completion rates within the Consortium Program.  
 
The move of the Consortium program to the Coyote Valley Site fulfills one of the program’s 
goals as identified on the IEC review. The Fire Technology component of the program has 
experience greater interest and enrollment over the past few years. The restructure of the Fire 
Fighter 1 Academy curriculum by the State Fire Marshal and the standardized testing component 
provides additional opportunities to expand the Gavilan Fire Program. Establishing a Fire 
Technology Associates and Associates for transfer are in line with one of the program goals. The 
Economic & Workforce Development report on public safety estimates a more that 20% increase 
in EMT and Paramedic jobs over the next 5 years. One of the Consortium program goals 
includes researching the viability of a Paramedic program which would complement the Fire 
Technology and EMT programs already established.  
 
 
D. Evidence of Internal and External Approvals  
 
The College Strategic Plan and Educational Master Plan both highlight the importance of and need 
to develop the Coyote Valley Site. These plans were developed and approved through a 
collaborative process involving various constituencies including the Board of Trustees. All Coyote 
Valley Site  and Consortium courses have the same course outline of record and the approval 
process as all other Gavilan College courses. The approval process includes the Curriculum 
Committee, Academic Senate and the Board of Trustees. In addition, the Consortium reports to 
its Board of Directors, of which Dr. Rose is the sitting Chair, on a quarterly basis providing 
regular updates on FTES generation, trends, accomplishments and potential issues as they arise.  
 
In addition to the District Board approval process, the Consortium program courses will be 
required to complete a recertification process with both the Commission on Peace Officers 
Standards in Training, and the State Fire Marshal to ensure the facilities and delivery of 
curriculum are in compliance with state standards and requirements 
 

10 
 



 

The Consortium Executive Staff keep current on relevant legal requirements related to public 
safety education and training by sitting on and attending POST Advisory Committee, State Fire 
Marshal Committee, and the Chancellor’s Office Public Safety Advisory Committee Meetings as 
well as reviewing relevant Title 5 requirements. Additionally, the remaining eight Consortium 
member colleges have offered letters in support of the relocation to the Coyote Valley Site. 
 
 
E.  Evidence of Maintenance of Eligibility Requirements  
 
E.1. Authority 
 
Gavilan Community College District’s authority to operate as a degree granting institution is 
granted by the Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges (ACCJC) of the 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges. ACCJC is an institutional accreditation body 
recognized by the Commission on Recognition of Postsecondary Accreditation and the United 
States Department of Education. 
 
The Consortium Program and courses are certified through the California Commission on Peace 
Officers Standards and Training, and the Fire Technology Academy and courses through the 
State Fire Marshal. The program is approved for veterans’ training and funding. Students who 
attend Gavilan College can receive full credit for appropriate courses completed with a grade of 
“C” or better. 
 
E.2. Mission 
 
The mission statement is clearly defined and reviewed and revised periodically by College 
Council. The current mission statement was approved by the Board of Trustees in January 
2016. The new mission has been disseminated throughout campus, in College publications, 
and on the College website, and playing a central role in guiding the strategic planning 
efforts of the College. 
 
The Consortium Program meets the stated mission and visionary educational values of Gavilan 
College by offering training that prepares students for technical and public service careers. The 
relocation of this program also strengthens the community by offering greater access to 
advanced student training in vocational and technical fields. 
 
E.3. Governing Board 
 
The Gavilan Joint Community College District Board of Trustees consists of seven members 
that are representatives of the District's service area. Terms are four years and staggered to 
ensure continuity. The Board includes a student trustee who serves a one-year term.  
(Appendix D) 
 
The Gavilan College Board of Trustees approved the creation of numerous Certificates of 

11 
 



 

Achievement and Associate of Arts Degree programs which are delivered through the 
Consortium Program including: a Certificate of Achievement and Associate of Arts in 
Administration of Justice, and a Certificate of Achievement in Fire Technology. Gavilan 
College offers these programs through the regular curriculum process on recommendation of 
the Academic Senate and Curriculum Committee. With this approval the Board demonstrated 
responsibility for the quality and integrity of the instructional programs to be delivered at 
Coyote Valley Site. 

 
E.4. Chief Executive Officer 
 
The Superintendent/President of the College is selected by the Governing Board. Dr. Kathleen 
Rose, Superintendent and President of Gavilan Joint Community College District, is the Chief 
Executive Officer.  Dr. Kathleen Rose has been serving the California Community College 
system since 2002, with the past 7 years as the Executive Vice President and Chief Instruction 
Officer at Gavilan College. Dr. Rose became the Superintendent/President in 2016. 
The president operates with the full-time responsibility to administer Board policies and 
contribute to community activities that promote the College. 
 
Dr. Walter Tribley is the sitting Chair for the South Bay Regional Public Safety Training 
Consortium Board of Directors. Consortium President Steven Cushing was selected by the 
Consortium Board of Directors in 2006. President Cushing provides full-time oversight of the 
Consortium Programs and is responsible to the Consortium Chair and Board of Directors.  
 
E.5. Administrative Capacity 
 
The administration is sufficient in number and qualifications to support the mission of the 
College. The Consortium Program Coordinators report directly to the Vice President of 
Academic Affairs, Linda Vaughn and Vice President of Law Enforcement Services, Gregg 
Giusiana. The V.P. of Academic Affairs works closely with the Dean of Career Technical 
Education, Sherrean Carr who provides oversight and guidance for the Consortium Program. 
Although, the Consortium as an organization reports directly to its Board of Directors, as it 
relates to Gavilan College the Executive Vice President and Chief Instructional Officer, Dr. 
Kathleen Rose, oversees academic quality of the program.  
 
E.6. Operational Status 
Approximately 5,500 FTE (Full Time Equivalent) students enroll in courses each year for all 
Gavilan member institutions. Students primarily enroll in courses that lead to two-year degrees, 
transfer degrees, or certificates of achievement. 

The Consortium Program enrolls approximately 2600 FTE students annually for the nine 
member colleges. Over 500 FTES students are enrolled directly with Gavilan College through 
the Consortium. Consortium classes are held continuously throughout the year, and counseling 
services are available for all new and continuing students. Students are enrolled in a variety of 
courses that lead to a certificate and/or Associate of Arts degree in Administration of Justice or 

12 
 



 

Fire Technology. 
 
E.7. Degrees 
 
The majority of courses support degree programs as described in the Gavilan College Catalog. 
Degree and transfer courses are identified in the catalog and listed on the College website. 

Gavilan College offers the Consortium Program through two types of career educational options: 
Associate Degree and Certificate of Achievement. Both offerings are approved and clearly 
identified in the College catalog or the College website. 
 
E.8. Educational Programs 
 
Gavilan Joint Community College District degree programs are aligned with its mission, are 
based on recognized higher education fields of study, and are of sufficient content and length. 
All courses scheduled for delivery at the Coyote Valley Site use the same course outline of 
record as those delivered on the Gilroy main campus and are designed to achieve the same 
student learning outcomes. Gavilan College offers courses and programs oriented toward transfer 
and career and technical education (CTE). 
 
The Consortium program consists of three state-approved courses of study including Basic 
Academy training in Law Enforcement, Fire Services and Emergency Medical Technician. 
Students will receive the requisite skills and knowledge to enter into one of these public safety 
professions, provided they meet any and all other State mandated requirements. The program 
also includes state-approved continued professional education courses required for promotion 
and career enhancement. This program meets the rigor and academic standard of all programs at 
Gavilan College, and has met the requirements for student learning outcomes at the course and 
program levels. 
 
E.9. Academic Credit 

 
Academic credit is based on Title 5 Section 55002.5 of the California Administrative Code of 
Regulations. The Curriculum Committee makes recommendations to the Academic Senate who 
in turn makes recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding changes in the curriculum. 
 
E.10.  Student Learning and Achievement 
 
Gavilan Joint Community College District identifies and assesses Student Learning Outcomes for 
all courses, Student Service programs, degrees and certificates. In an effort to improve 
effectiveness, the college is on a continuous improvement cycle.  
 
The Consortium program learning outcomes are based upon state skills and knowledge 
requirements for each public safety discipline. The Program Learning Outcomes for each are 

13 
 



 

stated in the College catalog and the College website. 
 
E.11.  General Education 
 
General education courses require students to demonstrate competence in English Language, 
Communication and Critical Thinking; Scientific Inquiry and Quantitative Reasoning; Arts and 
Humanities; Social Sciences; Life-long Learning and Self-development; and Cultural Diversity. 
Writing and mathematics and serve as introductions to natural sciences, social and behavioral 
sciences, humanities, and language and rationality (Title 5, Section 55806). All general education 
courses go through a review process to ensure that they meet appropriate academic standards and 
are consistent with statewide practices. 
 
Within the Consortium Program, the GE requirements will develop the student’s abilities to think 
and communicate clearly both orally and in writing, to use mathematics and employ scientific 
method, to understand modes of inquiry in major disciplines, to be aware of other cultures and 
eras, to apply critical thinking to contemporary issues, and develop the capacity for self-
understanding and improvement. The offering of GE classes at the same location as the 
Consortium program is a welcome addition to reinforce basic skills and assist students in 
achieving their educational goals. 
 
E.12.  Academic Freedom 
 
The College’s academic freedom standards are defined in Board Policy 4030 (Appendix E). The 
policy ensures that all students and faculty members are entitled to freedom of expression and 
that also applies to all courses and programs delivered at the Coyote Valley Site.  
 
E.13.  Faculty 
 
The College has 74 full-time faculty and 214 part-time faculty, which all meet the minimum 
qualifications of the respective disciplines as defined by Gavilan and the California Community 
College State Chancellor’s Office. The names and degrees of full-time faculty are published in 
the catalog. Faculty are required to complete training prior to teaching online courses. 
 
The Consortium Program employs over 200 part-time faculty who meet the minimum 
qualifications for the public safety disciplines as defined by Title 5 and the Academic Affairs 
Division of the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office. Faculty are regularly 
evaluated. The Consortium Vice President of Academic Affairs and Vice President of Law 
Enforcement Services provide management oversight of the faculty assignment and evaluation. 
 
E.14. Student Services 
 
Gavilan College develops student service programs to meet the educational needs of the students. 
Programs and services are published in the catalog and promoted widely through the campus 

14 
 



 

website. Students can apply to the College, apply for financial aid, register for classes, contact a 
counselor, go through orientation, and receive help with writing and research online. 
 
Student Support at the Coyote Valley Site will include essential educational support services for 
students and faculty in two phases. Phase I will include immediate student services required for 
initial instructional delivery. Phase II will offer enhanced services based on analysis of the first 
year of general and Career Technical Education instruction. 
 
The following Phase I student services will be provided at the Coyote Valley Site: 
 
Administrative:  Basic administrative support will be provided Monday through 
Friday 8:00 am - 5:00 pm. for faculty and students at the Coyote Valley Site. The administrative 
office will provide staff services such as mail, reprographics and support for faculty needs. 
Gavilan College will manage all fiscal functions for the Coyote Valley Site from the main 
campus in Gilroy. Services will include financial aid, counseling and registration services. 
 
Bookstore:  Space will be designated in the Coyote Valley Site for Bookstore functions. The 
Gavilan College bookstore will provide full access to students at the beginning of each semester 
as well as 24-hour access through the online bookstore. Vending machines with basic supplies 
such as Scantrons, green books, etc. can give students onsite access to these items. 
 
Admissions and Records:  Gavilan College uses the Banner data system for registration and 
scheduling. The MyGav portal allows students to add and drop classes, pay fees, check their 
student email, access all-campus messages, use Library and Degree Works resources, and more. 
They can also access grades and unofficial transcripts. The Coyote Valley Site staff will assist 
students and provide follow up services. Application to the college is also online, through 
CCCApply. 
 
Assessment:  Gavilan College uses the Accuplacer program, which gives students the results of 
their assessment tests immediately after completion. The Assessment Office, located on the 
Gilroy campus, will schedule onsite placement exams at the Coyote Valley Site on a regular 
basis. 
 
In addition, South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium provides pre-employment 
assessment, training, testing and courses to assist students to prepare for the public safety Basic 
Courses/Academies. 
 
Counseling:  General and categorical counselors will provide scheduled counseling appointments 
onsite at the Coyote Valley Site to assist students with registration, educational planning, and 
other counseling needs. 
 
Security:  The site will be under the jurisdiction of the County of Santa Clara Sheriff’s 
Department. Site security will be managed by the Gavilan College Security Department. 
 

15 
 



 

Food Services:  Limited food services (vending machines) will be available for the student and 
staff use. Restaurants, fast food and basic grocery establishments are available within a 5-mile 
radius of the Coyote Valley Site. 
 
Transportation:  The Coyote Valley Site will have access to the Santa Clara Valley Transit 
Authority (VTA) bus system. Mass transit will be emphasized, although sufficient parking is 
included in the plan. The campus is served by bus line 68, which runs along Santa Teresa Blvd 
from San Jose to Gilroy, giving students from throughout the district access to the Coyote Valley 
Educational Center. The VTA-68 also provides connections to the VTA light rail in San Jose, 
Cal train in Morgan Hill and Gilroy, local buses in Morgan Hill and Gilroy, and the San Benito 
County Express. Public Information, Marketing and Communications: These services as they 
relate will continue to be coordinated by the Gavilan College Public Information Office. 
Outreach activities will be coordinated by the Gavilan College Outreach Office. 
 
The Disability Resource Center (DRC):  DRC will assist students with disabilities. These 
services include testing accommodations, access to assistive technology and alternative text 
publications. Gavilan College technology is Section 508 compliant and accessible for all users. 
 
E.15.  Admissions 

Admissions policies are consistent with the College mission and conform to state law. The 
policies are codified in Board Policies 5005 and 5010 (Appendix F). They are published in the 
catalog and on the Gavilan College website.  
 
E.16.  Information and Learning Resources 
 
The College has appropriate and sufficient information and learning resources to support student 
success. The physical resources include more than 100,000 owned books/subscribed ebooks and 
AV materials; and 50 magazine subscriptions. The Library also subscribes to approximately 40 
online databases that provide access to millions of full-text articles. Research and support 
services are also available online. In addition, the Library maintains an open computer lab, 
laptops for checkout and group study rooms, and many other learning spaces where students can 
complete course work.  
 
The Consortium will maintain a Resource Center of text, videos and CDs at the Coyote Valley 
Site, as well as a Bookstore for faculty and student supplies specific to the public safety program, 
as well as for all students at the Coyote Valley Site. 
 
E.17.  Financial Resources 
 
Most College financial resources come from the State of California. Additional funding is 
obtained from federal, state, and private sources. All funds are carefully tracked and 
documented. For many years, the College has allocated adequate financial resources to support 
the immediate and potential growth needs of the Consortium Program. The College maintains 
conservative financial management policies and practices that ensure continued fiscal stability 

16 
 



 

for the foreseeable future.  
 
Financial Aid: Coyote Valley Site staff will provide students with financial aid application 
information and assistance. Staff will inform students about the available federal, state and 
private funds available. These services will be provided on a drop-in basis or by appointment, 
and will be coordinated with the support of the Gavilan College Financial Aid Office. 
 
Categorical support programs: Referrals to specialized support services will be coordinated with 
main campus Gavilan College programs and services to enhance student access, retention and 
success. Students will be able to participate in student services such as CalWORKs, TRiO and 
EOPS. Programs to support foster youth, military veterans and TRIO and supportive services are 
also available.  
 
E.18.  Financial Accountability 

 
The College is audited annually by certified public accountants. The audit includes expenses and 
income generated by Distance Education programs. 
 
The Consortium Program is audited annually by independent certified public accountants. The 
audit includes expenses and income generated by the Consortium which is reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors. The 2014-15 fiscal year audit can be found in Appendix H. 
 
E.19.  Institutional Planning and Evaluation 
 

The District plans are developed based on an established yearly planning cycle. The cycle begins 
with each division's and administrative area’s plan, which is based on individual program plans 
and reviews; and other input from campus committees. These committees include: Budget 
Committee, Academic Senate, and Enrollment Management among others. The College Council 
is responsible for integrating the division and area program plans into a cohesive, integrated 
strategic planning document. The integrated College plan includes support materials and data 
used by the divisions and areas in the development of their individual planning documents and 
recommendations. 
 
E.20.  Integrity in Communication with the Public 
 
The College’s mission is articulated in the College's catalog, the Educational Master Plan and 
Strategic Plan. The College catalog, the District schedule of classes and the Consortium Program 
are available via the Gavilan College website and provide current information on: degrees and 
curricular offerings, student fees, cost of degree and certificate estimates, financial aid, refund 
policies, admissions policies, transfer requirements, hours of operation and appropriate contact 
information. The College also issues press releases and purchases newspaper, online, radio and 
television advertisements to make the public aware of important dates and special events.  
 
E.21.  Integrity in Relations with Accrediting Commission 

17 
 



 

 
The College is in good standing with the Accrediting Commission. The College consistently and 
promptly complies with all Commission requests for information. 
 
The Consortium programs are currently certified by the Commission on POST, State Fire 
Marshal, and Santa Clara County Emergency Management Services Agency (EMSA). The 
Consortium is in good standing with the certifying agencies and responds promptly to all 
requests for information or assistance. 
 
 
F. Accreditation Standards 
 
Gavilan College is a fully accredited institution. Its accreditation was reaffirmed without 
sanction in July 2013. All courses and Consortium operations at the Coyote Valley Site will 
maintain the same standards as classes held on the main Gilroy campus. 
 
Standard I: The College mission guides the delivery of the Consortium Program and all courses 
presented at the Coyote Valley Site, and is critical to helping students meet their educational and 
career goals. The College mission provides the framework for developing the College’s strategic 
goals and serves as a reference and guide as new plans are made to support student success. 
Programs, services, and courses are on a continual review cycle to ensure academic quality and 
institutional effectiveness. Student Learning Outcomes are defined in all programs and courses 
and are assessed with frequency. Assessment data is shared with constituent groups to ensure the 
College maintains a continual improvement cycle.  
 
In keeping with the College’s mission, the Consortium was created “…to meet the educational 
and training need of public safety students within the areas represented by the participating 
community college districts. The mission will be accomplished in an effective and efficient 
manner to ensure the highest quality training for public safety professionals.”  
 

Standard II: The College ensures that all courses delivered by the Consortium and at the Coyote 
Valley Site adhere to the course outlines of record, are taught at the appropriate depth and rigor, 
and maintain the same learning outcomes as courses offered on the Gilroy Main Campus. All 
courses require approval by the Curriculum Committee and Board of Trustees. 
 

The Consortium program and others offered at the Coyote Valley Site will undergo the same 
program review process as all other programs in the college. Program reviews are completed by 
each department every three to five years and include a Program Plan. This process includes a 
self-study report by a validation process.  The Consortium Program completed the IEC process 
in 2014-15. 
 
Student services are sufficient to help students meet their educational goals. Most matriculation 
requirements can be met through a combination of online and telephone services. Guidance 
through admissions, registration, financial aid, and counseling is available online, email and/or 

18 
 



 

via telephone. The College Orientation has an online option and counseling offers telephone and 
online appointments. Students have access to online library resources and services as well as at 
the main campus.  
 
Standard III. All District faculty, including South Bay Regional Public Safety Training 
Consortium faculty are hired and evaluated using the same procedures. All instructors must meet 
the minimum qualifications in their disciplines as recommended by the statewide academic 
senate and established by the board of Governors of the California Community Colleges and are 
on an evaluation cycle. Consortium administrators and staff are on an annual evaluation cycle. 
Consortium staff will act as a liaison to the main college campus. 
 
The facilities at the Coyote Valley Site are adequate for the courses, number of sections, and 
number of students served by the Consortium. The site, equipment and technology will be 
maintained by the Consortium to ensure the safety of the students and are adequate to support 
instruction. 
 
Standard IV: The College has implemented the integrated planning cycle that is documented in 
the Educational Master Plan (2012). In addition, the College follows a participatory governance 
model in which faculty, students, staff, and administrators serve on key committees and share in 
decision-making processes. Institutional committees report findings and recommendations to 
Instructional Council, Student Services Council, and/or Academic Senate. As appropriate, these 
recommendations are then reported to College Council and/or the Board of Trustees for final 
consideration.  
 
The South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium is a Joint Powers Agency comprised 
of nine Community College Districts in San Mateo, Santa Clara, San Benito, Alameda, Santa 
Cruz, Monterey Counties. The Consortium is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of 
leadership from each of the member colleges, currently Chaired by Dr. Walter Tribley, President 
of Monterey Peninsula College. The Consortium meets with the Board on a quarterly basis and 
reports issues, concerns, accomplishments and updates on the program as necessary.  
(Appendix G)  
 
 
 
  

19 
 



 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Consortium & Public Safety Program Enrollment Trends 
 

 
Programs 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 
Law 
Enforcement 

1122 1329 1418 1631 1568 1521 1438 1243 1437 

Corrections 156 126 362 207 359 260 109 67 29 
Dispatch 75 65 95 153 152 73 122 89 64 
Fire Tech 760 776 625 603 592 471 483 577 521 
*South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium FTES totals 
 
 
 

Programs 
 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

Law Enforcement 332.55 135.23 357.19 393.11 
Fire Technology   66.39 208.68 122.17   64.45 

  * Gavilan College Consortium Program FTES totals by TOP Code 
 
 
 
 

Programs 
 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

Law Enforcement 6,769 2,019 2,739 2,311 
Fire Technology    176 1,129    583    569 

  * Gavilan College Consortium Program Student Enrollment by TOP Code 
 
 
 
  
  

20 
 



 

Appendix B – Social/Demographic/Labor Market Snapshot 
 

Social & Demographic Analysis of Service Area 
South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium is a Regional Training Consortium created in 
response to a California Community College Chancellor’s Office Grant. The South Bay Joint Powers 
Agency (JPA) has operated for approximately 20 years primarily in the greater Bay Area. The JPA 
currently includes 9 Community College Districts from the counties of El Dorado, Alameda, San Mateo, 
Santa Clara, San Benito to Monterey.  Due to the vast service area, the student and general population 
covered by the Consortium is extremely diverse relative to its social and demographic complexion. 
Overall, the population in the incorporated and unincorporated areas within the service region is 
approximately 50% white, 23-28% Hispanic or Latino, 10-23% Asian, 5-7 % African American, 1% Native 
Hawaiian, and 4-5% “two or more races”.  65% of the region residents are between the ages of 18 and 
64 years with approximately 42% securing a higher degree or professional certificate. These figures are a 
snap-shot of the region and will vary between specific college districts (U.S. Census Bureau, 2010).  The 
JPA’s service region boasts the highest level of ethnic diversity. Current analysis suggests the largest 
percentage increase will be in the Asian and Native Hawaiian communities followed the Hispanic or 
Latino community.  Within the JPA region, Santa Clara County is the fastest growing county within the 
state. Predictions suggest it will grow by 47% in the next forty years. Monterey and San Benito counties 
are expected to realize substantial growth as well (ABAG, 2013). 
 

White Hispanic/Latino Asian African Amer Native HI 2+ Races 
50% 23-28% 10-23% 5-7% 1% 4-5% 

* Approximate demographics within the region. 
 
Historically, the South Bay JPA has provided training to a similarly diverse student population. Due to the 
physical nature of the Public Safety Profession, as well as other legal requirements and restrictions (i.e. 
citizenship, educational requirements, criminal history), the South Bay JPA student base is skewed 
somewhat toward white male students yet trends closely with demographic of the region. 
 

White Hispanic African Amer Asian/Pac Isl Native Amer 
60% 21.6% 6.1% 9.6% 1.7% 

     
 Male  Female  
 68%  32%  

* Representative of the demographic over the last five year period. 
 
  

21 
 



 

Gavilan College 

  

22 
 



 

Socioeconomic Profile of Service Area / Present & Future Labor Market (Area, Region, State) 
The JPA’s vast service area also lends to a substantial variance in the economic profile.  The communities 
incorporate new growing families and retirement residents. The per capita income for the counties in 
the region range from $24,995 to $45,458 with the statewide per capital income at $29,551 (U.S. Census 
Bureau, 2012). It is noted there are large disparities between income levels relative to individual cities 
within the counties as well.   

Approximately 34% of the population is foreign born nationals, which provide for challenges and 
opportunities.  The multiplicity of languages, the under educated and difficult to employ population 
equates to additional social and education services for the JPA target populations and are expected to 
realize the greatest growth over the next decade. Generally over the past ten years public safety 
professionals have experienced a steady decline of employment opportunities.  Only recently has the 
market shown a slight increase in the employment opportunities, with most agencies experiencing 
annual vacancies, which will need to be filled, between 5% and 15% of their workforce; depending upon 
the agency and discipline. 

 
 
 

23 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

24 
 



 

South Bay Regional PSTC 
 
 
  

25 
 



 

Appendix D - Board Policy 2100 (Board Elections) 
 
 
 

 
 

26 
 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

27 
 



 

Appendix E – Board Policy 4030 (Academic Freedom) 

 

  

28 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

29 
 



 

Appendix F – Board Policies (Admissions)  

30 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
  

31 
 



 

Appendix G – South Bay Regional PSTC History 
 
February 1992 in Assembly Concurrent Resolution No. 93, the community colleges were tasked 
with providing “sufficient public safety training courses to satisfy State-mandated training 
requirements, participate in regional consortiums of community colleges in order to minimize 
duplication of training courses, and make training programs more readily available.” The 
colleges had been offering these courses in standard Semester and Quarter term formats, 
generally failing to obtain the required attendance numbers to run the courses.  Thus, active 
public safety personnel began to fall out of compliance with certifications and legal mandates. 
 
As a result of this resolution and the issues with servicing the needs of the target student 
population, a Public Safety Committee was convened by the State of California, comprised of 
members from the Community Colleges, Police, Corrections, Hazardous Materials and Fire 
practitioners, and the State Chancellor’s Office. The Committee was tasked with identifying 
ways to deliver high quality training and education to entry level students and working 
professionals within the Public Safety professions. This committee initiated a State-wide 
Request For Applications (RFA) for grant funding through the Community College Chancellor’s 
Office Public Safety Educators Advisory. 
 
In July 1993 Evergreen Valley College, Criminal Justice Training Center was awarded a grant from 
the California Community College Chancellor’s Office to analyze the feasibility and develop 
“Public Safety Model of Education Program” in a “Regional Consortium”: Reference Project #93-
0070.  South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium (SBRPSTC) was born out of this 
grant. Evergreen Valley College and Gavilan College were the first two colleges to enter into the 
Joint Powers Agreement on October 6, 1994, as a continuing pilot for an additional year. The 
Joint Powers Agreement provided SBRPSTC the “powers common to the participating districts” 
and “authorized (SBRPSTC) to do all acts necessary for the exercise of said common powers” 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 6500, et seq. of the California Government Code.  
 
The pilot proved to be more successful for students and the colleges than expected and 
subsequently additional colleges joined the Consortium through the Joint Powers Agreement. By 
the end of the pilot the Consortium was five (5) colleges strong and negotiations were underway 
for additional colleges to partake. By August 1996, in a letter authored by Dr. Susan Oliviera to 
Dr. Leo Ruelas, SBRPSTC advised the California Community College Chancellor’s Office that the 
Consortium included seven (7) college districts, had been awarded additional Chancellor’s grant 
funding to develop and offer new training programs to meet the needs of the public safety 
students. At the recommendation of the Chancellor’s Office, all instructors recommended by 
SBRPSTC meet the minimum qualifications as designated through Title 5 and approved by “one 
of the participating SBRPSTC College Boards.” “The faculty are then considered approved by all 
the member colleges to teach in the SBRPSTC course offerings.” 
 
SBRPSTC continued to prove to be beneficial in serving the public safety community, those 
seeking employment and those employed, as well as being more efficient and cost effective for 
the member colleges. During the 1994-95 pilot SBRPSTC successfully generated in excess of 615 
FTES. Although the commitments from the colleges have fluctuated over the years, SBRPSTC has 
been able to maintain training and services to public safety students at all educational levels, 
and currently generates a combined total of approximately 2400 FTES for the nine (9) member 
colleges.  

32 
 



 

 
The structure and efficiencies of organization have allowed SBRPSTC to expand the services 
offered to students not currently employed within the public safety profession. SBRPSTC is able 
to prove a single location to students for the pre-employment testing procedures (written and 
physical abilities) for law enforcement, dispatch and fire services. We offer pre-employment 
courses that assist the students in preparing for the Basic Academy, and the challenging 
employment processes including testing, interviewing and completion of required documents. In 
addition, we provide perishable skills update training so students can maintain the requisite 
skills and certifications necessary to secure employment, and keep current on the ever changing 
legal implications associated with the public safety profession. 
 
Since its creation, SBRPSTC has worked in concert with our member colleges to articulate 
courses, follow procedures and meet the needs of the student population in the most effective 
and efficient manner possible.  
 
 

33 
 










































































































































































	Sept 13 board agenda1.pdf
	CLOSED SESSION 6:15 p.m.

	Sept 13 board agenda1.pdf
	CLOSED SESSION 6:15 p.m.

	Subchangeproposal_draft updated 09-07-16pc-1acceptedchanges.pdf
	A. Overview of Substantive Change
	A.1 Description of Proposed Change
	A.2 Relationship to the Gavilan College Mission
	A.3 Rationale for Proposed Change

	B. Planning Process Leading to Request for Change
	B.1 Relationship to Planning, Evaluation and Stated Mission
	B.2 Needs and Resource Assessment
	B.3 Anticipated Effect of the Proposed Change on the Institution
	B.4 Benefits Resulting from Change
	B.5 Preparation and Planning Process for the Change

	C. Institutional Resources, Process for Change and Quality Assurances
	C.1 Student Support Services
	C.2 Sufficient and Qualified Faculty, Management, and Support Staffing
	C.3 Professional Development
	C.4 Appropriate Equipment and Facilities
	C.5 Sustainable Fiscal Resources
	C.6 Comparative Analysis of Budget, Enrollment and Recourses
	C.7 Plan for Monitoring Achievement of Outcomes
	C.8 Evaluation and Assessment of Student Success, Retention and Completion

	D. Evidence of Internal and External Approvals
	E.  Evidence of Maintenance of Eligibility Requirements
	F. Accreditation Standards
	Appendices
	Appendix A – Consortium & Public Safety Program Enrollment Trends
	Appendix B – Social/Demographic/Labor Market Snapshot
	Appendix D - Board Policy 2100 (Board Elections)
	Appendix E – Board Policy 4030 (Academic Freedom)
	Appendix F – Board Policies (Admissions)
	Appendix G – South Bay Regional PSTC History



